TEMPERATURE@LERT®



Cellular Edition User Guide Model TM-CELL300

TEMPERATURE@LERT

Cellular Edition TM-CELL300 User Guide

User Guide

Thank you for choosing Temperature@lert to protect your highly valuable belongings from unexpected changes in temperature. We hope that you will find our products and services the simplest and most reliable wireless temperature monitoring systems available.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	3
ABOUT TEMPERATURE@LERT	5
ABOUT THE TM-CELL300	5
HARDWARE GUIDE	7
CELLULAR EDITION AT A GLANCE	7
Setting Up the Hardware	7
Verifying Wireless Signal Reception	7
Setting Up Your First Alert	8
TEMPERATURE@LERT CELLULAR EDITION IN DETAIL	8
Indicator Lights	9
Status Light	9
Battery Light	9
Warning Light	9
Failure Light	
Light Indicator Reference Table	10
Cellular Edition Jacks and Connectors	10
Charging the Battery	
Operating Modes	
Turning on the Device	
Turning off the Device	
Signal Strength Indicator Mode	12
OPERATING GUIDELINES	12
Placement	
Wireless Reception	12
TROUBLESHOOTING	13
Common Problems	13
Failure Light is Flashing	13
Warning Light is Flashing	
Specifications	15
WEBSITE GUIDE	16

Logging In	16
CHECKING THE CURRENT TEMPERATURE	17
Device List	18
Device List Sensors	20
DEVICE DETAILS & SETTINGS	21
Device Edit	23
Device Alerts	24
Adding/Editing Device Alerts & Actions	26
Sensor Edit	
Adding/Editing Sensor Alerts & Actions	
EXPORTING DATA	32
MY ACCOUNT	
Setting Your Time Zone and Units Preferences	
Changing Your Email Address and Password	
Upgrading Your Account	
Cancelling Your Account	
OBTAINING SERVICE AND SUPPORT	35

About Temperature@lert

Our data logger device helps to alert you when slight changes in the environment are detected. We believe in the simplicity of our device – in design, set-up, and operation.

Our device is cost effective. We strive to design, manufacture and deliver high quality, reliable products and services our customers want at a price they believe delivers good value and the peace of mind they expect. We have a long history of designing devices to measure environmental changes. Our line of monitoring devices takes environmental monitoring to the next level by allowing for customized timing of monitoring efforts and customized methods of alert notifications. We design our products and services to make them easy to use as delivered together with the capability to be customized for technical applications and advanced integration requirements.

About the TM-CELL300

Temperature@lert's next generation cellular offering provides leading edge data logger performance and advanced features to meet the needs of IT, Medical, Bio/Pharma, Retail and Commercial Food Service, Property Management, Solar & Green Energy and Residential customers to keep track of their valuable materials, equipment and data where limited or no network connectivity is an issue.

The CELL300 monitors temperature and/or humidity sensors and alerts you via phone call, email or text message when the readings are out of range all without a phone line or internet connection. The newest version TM-CELL300 incorporates the exceptional features of the previous generation device and in addition provides customers with capabilities and benefits to make it the most user-friendly, cost-effective Cellular temperature and humidity sensor on the market today. These include:

- Easy to set up and use just plug it in and it begins taking readings and sending information.
- Dual Sensor Input Capability Significantly reduces Cost/Sensor (Measurement Point), very useful for food service, medical and

pharmaceutical applications where monitoring of both the refrigerator and freezer compartments of storage units is required.

- Temperature/Humidity Sensor Option Adds Relative Humidity monitoring for critical applications such as Servers, HVAC Systems, Refrigerators and Freezers, Archives and Laboratories.
- Set and send alerts for multiple temperature and/or humidity thresholds – provides an easy and meaningful way to implement an escalation strategy based on severity of the conditions in critical areas.
- Send multiple email, text and voice messages for each threshold and notification type – lets those who are most affected by potential problems know when issues arise and when they are resolved.
- Data Logging stores and forwards data when your device is out of range of a cellular connection so no data is lost, providing complete histories of the environment you're monitoring. This is especially suited for mobile applications such as refrigerated Food and Medical Supply distribution.

Hardware Guide

Cellular Edition at a Glance

The Temperature@lert Cellular Edition is a remote temperature monitor which measures the temperature at its location every few minutes. Each temperature reading is transmitted via the mobile phone network to our 24/7 monitoring system and secure web site. If the temperature goes too high or too low, the system will call, email or text message you.

If the power ever goes out, the unit will continue to operate for one to two weeks on its built-in battery backup. If the monitoring website ever fails to hear from the unit, you will receive an alert to check the device. Either way, we want you to know that we've got you covered.

Temperature@lert Cellular Edition requires a monthly or annual monitoring plan for operation. If you purchased your unit from a reseller, you will need to call Temperature@lert at 866-524-3540 or email support@temperaturealert.com to subscribe to a plan.

The Temperature@lert Cellular Edition includes the following items:



Setting Up the Hardware

Simply connect the unit to any AC outlet to power on the device and the unit will power on. After ten seconds, temperature readings will automatically begin transmitting. The unit is operating correctly if you do NOT see the red failure light blink.

Verifying Wireless Signal Reception

Your Temperature@lert Cellular Edition transmits temperatures via the AT&T and T-Mobile 3G GSM mobile phone networks. In order for the unit to

operate, you **must be within range of either the AT&T or T-Mobile** (or one of their roaming partners) **service area**.

If your unit cannot connect to the wireless network, the red "fail" light will blink twice every few seconds. If your unit cannot read the temperature sensor, the red "fail" light will blink once every few seconds.

Please refer to troubleshooting section of this document if you continue to receive the red "fail" light.

Setting Up Your First Alert

Temperature@lert Cellular Edition is primarily controlled via the Dashboard website located at www.myalertlist.com.

Log into www.myalertlist.com using the username and password you created when you purchased the device. To setup a temperature alert notification, follow these steps:

- 1. Click on the Device List tab.
- 2. In the Device List table, click on the view link for your device.
- 3. Scroll to the bottom of the page
- 4. Next to Sensor Alerts, click the Edit link.
- 5. Click the Add Alert link.
- 6. Enter a name for the alert.
- 7. Choose Temperature for the condition.
- 8. Set the alert for above or below the temperature reading.
- 9. Enter the temperature threshold in degrees that will trip the alert.
- 10. Click the Add Action link.
- 11. Select Email, Phone, or SMS and enter the email or phone number.
- 12. Click the Send on Clear Also box to be notified when the temperature comes back in range.
- 13. Click the Save button.

Please review the website guide later in this document for detailed instructions on setting alerts.

Temperature@lert Cellular Edition in Detail

The Cellular Edition was designed from day one to be wicked (yes, we're headquartered in Boston, MA) simple. Keeping it simple enables the unit to

achieve rock solid reliability and performance. As with any piece of technology, it's always good to know the details even on the simple stuff.

Indicator Lights

The unit has 4 indicator lights: Status, Battery, Warning and Failure (see figure 1).



Status Light

The green status light will blink once every few seconds to indicate the unit is powered on. During transmission on the cellular network, the green status light will blink rapidly.

Battery Light

The green battery light will blink once every few seconds to indicate the battery is currently (forgive the pun) being charged. The battery light will not blink if the unit is not connected to AC power. The battery will power the unit from one to two weeks depending on wireless signal strength and monitoring interval.

Warning Light

The warning light will flash once every few seconds to indicate the unit's internal battery is low. The warning light will flash twice every few seconds to indicate a low wireless signal. Your unit is operating normally even if the warning light is flashing.

Failure Light

The failure light will flash once every few seconds to indicate there was an error reading the temperature sensor. The failure light will flash twice every few seconds to indicate there was a problem sending the temperature over the wireless network. If the failure light is flashing, your device is not functioning. Please refer to the troubleshooting section of this manual.

	Single Blink	Double Blink
Status	Power On	Transmitting
Battery	Charging	
Warning	Low Battery	Low Wireless Signal
Failure	Sensor Trouble	Wireless Trouble

Cellular Edition Jacks and Connectors

On the side of the unit, you'll find the majority of the connectors and jacks (see figure 2):

Antenna – The GSM swivel antenna is connected via a threaded SMA mount.

Power - This jack accepts the DC power output from the wall transformer.

Power Switch – This switch is used to control the different operating modes of the device (See operating modes).

Sensor Jack 1 & 2 – The sensor jack accepts Temperature@lert environmental sensors. The unit will monitor up to two temperature sensors or two combination temperature/humidity sensors. An optional 10 port splitter can be connected to the device to allow up to 10 sensors to be connected. Additional sensors are under development. Please visit TemperatureAlert.com for the latest details.



Charging the Battery

While the unit is connected to wall power, the battery charge is automatically maintained. When the battery is charging the battery light will flash once every few seconds. The battery light will continue to flash while the unit is connected to wall power.

Operating Modes

Turning on the Device

Connecting a unit that has been powered off to wall power will turn on the unit. Alternatively, a ball point pen or paper clip can be used to press and immediately release the On/Off button. All lights will briefly light up and the unit will be turn on.

Turning off the Device

The unit is shipped in the Off mode. To power off the device, use a ball point pen or paper clip to press AND HOLD the On/Off button for 10 seconds. You will see all lights turn on and the status light will flash. When the lights start going off in order one by one, you can release the On/Off button. The unit is now powered off.

While fully powered off, the unit will not send or record any temperature readings any time. All indicator lights will be off.

Signal Strength Indicator Mode

Use this mode to determine the wireless cellular signal strength where the device is installed. To enter signal strength indicator mode, use a ballpoint pen or paperclip and push the On/Off button for 3 seconds. All lights will come on. When the status light begins flashing, you can release the On/Off button. You are now in signal strength indicator mode. As you move the device around, the number of lights will turn on and off to indicate signal strength. The more lights that are on, the stronger the wireless cellular signal.

To exit signal strength indicator mode, use a ballpoint pen or paperclip to briefly press and release the On/Off button. All lights will briefly turn on and then the device will enter normal operation. Otherwise, the device will automatically return to normal operation after three minutes of signal strength indicator mode.

Operating Guidelines

Placement

The unit should be placed indoors on a flat and level surface. The unit can be mounted vertically on a wall or other surface with additional hardware or with industrial Velcro® tape.

Wireless Reception

The unit requires a cellular wireless signal in order to operate. If a signal is unavailable in the desired installation area, the sensor cable can be increased to a length of up to 100 feet (30 meters). You can use a standard RJ12 six conductor extension cable or contact Temperature@lert to purchase a longer cable. (Note, four conductor extension cables may not allow your device to operate properly.)

Alternatively, an external Quad or Dual band GSM antenna with an SMA mount can be utilized. Note that antenna extension wire length degrades the signal as length increases. We do not recommend using an antenna cable over 6-feet (1.8 meters) in length. Please contact Temperature@lert support before connecting an antenna not supplied with the unit. Use of an incorrect antenna can place the device out of FCC compliance.

The antenna should be oriented in a vertical position perpendicular to the horizon.

The antenna must remain connected during operation. In order to disconnect the antenna, complete the full power down instructions first.

Troubleshooting

Common Problems

Failure Light is Flashing

Check to ensure that the temperature sensor cable is securely locked into either one of the sensor jacks. Visually inspect the cable for nicks and cuts from friction with doors or other cables.

Enter signal strength indicator mode to determine if you have adequate cellular service in the area of operation.

Charge the battery for 10-15 minutes by connecting the unit to wall power. If the unit has been powered down for a long time, a very low battery can cause the device to have trouble transmitting.

Contact Temperature@lert support if you require further assistance.

Warning Light is Flashing

A warning light does not indicate a fault or failure. The device is still transmitting successfully as long as the red failure light is not flashing. The warning lights serve to alert you of a potential problem.

Check to ensure the device is connected to AC power. To determine if the power supply has failed, you can use the included cable to connect the device to any computer's USB port. Once the device receives power, the battery light should start flashing to indicate the battery is being charged. The battery light will continue to flash as long as the unit is connected to AC power.

The signal strength from the selected installation site may be low. Use signal strength indicator mode to find a more suitable location if needed.

Specifications

Model	TM-CELL300
English Dimensions	4.3" x 3.2" x 0.9"
Metric Dimensions	111 x 82 x 23
Weight	6.7 oz (190 grams)
Software Requirements	Any current web browser for initial setup
Hardware Requirements	No PC required
Network Requirements	GSM Cellular Signal Coverage
Built-in Battery Backup	Lasts 14 to 21 Days
Operating Temperature Range	-30°C to 70°C
Temperature Sensor Range	-55°C to 125°C (-67°F to 257°F)
Temperature Sensor Accuracy	±0.5°C Accuracy from -10°C to +85°C
Operating Temp/Humidity Range	-10°C to 70°C
Temp/Humidity Sensor Range	10% to 90% RH @ Operating Temperature
Temp/Humidity Sensor Accuracy	±3% RH Accuracy from -10°C to +70°C
Power Source	5VDC 500mAh
Sensor Datasheet	http://datasheets.maxim-ic.com/en/ds/DS18B20.pdf
Maximum Sensor Cable Length	100'
Internal Battery Backup	Li-Ion 3.7V (this device must be recycled properly)
Communications	Quad Band GSM GPRS
Real Time Alerts	Yes
Monitoring Frequency	2 minutes to 240 minutes
Continuous or One Time Alerts	User Selectable
Email, SMS, Phone Alerts	Yes
PC Shutdown	No
Data Log Format	Word, Excel
SMTP Authentication	Not Applicable
SNMP	No
iPhone App	Yes
Online Temperature Log	Yes
In the Box	TM-CELL300 Unit, Antenna, Quick Start
	Guide, 6" (1.8M) External Temperature
	Sensor, 110/240VAC North American Powe
	adapter, 6' (1.8M) Power Cable
Warranty	1 Year
Money Back Guarantee	30 Days Risk Free (minus shipping)
Software Upgrades	Uniimited with Monthly Monitoring Plan
Activation Fee	
Monthly Fee	res, various monthly plans

Website Guide

The Temperature@lert website is used to view temperature history and configure your temperature alerts. This guide will explain the various configuration options available to you.

Logging In

In your web browser, go to <u>http://www.myalertlist.com/</u> and click on "Login" at the top right of the page.

Temperature@lert	Ilogin × 0	
	tps://www.myalertlist.com/login.aspx	公 义
TEMPERATU	RE@LERT	Help
Login (secure)	Sign in with your username and password Username 1 Password 2 Sign in Forget your username? forget your password? By choosing to login you are accepting the terms of use.	
	© 2009 Temperature@lert All Rights Reserved	

1) Enter the username and password you created at check out. If you do not have a username and password, please email support@temperaturealert.com.

2) Click "Sign In".

3) If you do not know your username or password click on the forgot username or password link and follow the instructions.

Checking the Current Temperature

When you first login, the current conditions map is displayed.



1) You may log out of the system any time by clicking the logout link. If you need assistance, click the help link to contact support.

2) Three tabs are displayed at all times. The Current Conditions tab displays the map. Clicking on the Device List tab displays all Cellular Edition Units associated with your account. Clicking the My Account tab allows you to set your account preferences and password.

3) Each push-pin on the map is a temperature monitor. Pins are green if there are no alarms generated from that device.

4) Pins turn during an alarm condition. Click on each push pin to see the last activity reported in the info window. The info window also provides links to see the full details of that device or edit the device's settings.

If you only see one pin and you have multiple units, they may have been configured with the same address and are displayed one on top of the other. See Device Settings below for information on how to change the address of each unit.

5) If you've changed the zoom level or center of the map. You can click the Set Current View as Default Map View link to save the current view. The next time the page loads, it will remember your current zoom level and center position.

Device List

The device list tab displays all the temperature monitors associated with your account.

St	tatus	Device #	Name		Monitoring Interval	Last Activity	5			
A	larm!	11444000080793070751	Wine Fridge (802.11)	15 Minutes	3/24/2010 12:44:38 PM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
A	larm!	89012607600005669220	lake powell water te	emp right now	15 Minutes	5/12/2010 1:36:10 PM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
A	larm!	89012607600005671280	89012607600005671	280	15 Minutes	9/22/2010 9:54:08 AM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
A	larm!	89012607600005750060	Old 124C		240 Minutes	4/10/2010 5:08:11 AM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
N	ormal	89012607600005712780	Server Room		15 Minutes	11/3/2009 11:47:25 PM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
N	ormal	11555000003402786501	usb 40 test		5 Minutes	9/14/2010 12:27:05 PM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
				© 2009 Temper	aturs@lert All Rights	Reserved				

1) The following summary information is displayed in the device list:

Status – The status column indicates if the last temperature reading is out of the acceptable limits. A green "Normal" indicates the device is within your limits. A red "Alarm!" indicates that the last temperature reading is outside of your limits.

Device # – Device number (sometimes referred to as device ID) is the unique identifier for each device. The device # can also be found on the bottom of your unit.

Name – Remembering the Device # is not easy. You can set the field to Device Name to make it easier to remember where a device is installed.

Monitoring Interval – This indicates how often a temperature reading is being taken.

Last Activity – Displays the time and date of the last temperature report.

2) Each Temperature@lert Cellular Edition is listed as a separate row in the device view. You can use the paging links at the bottom of the table page through your account if you have a large number of Cellular Edition devices.

3) Each device has several actions associated with it:

View – Click the View link to see the full details of any device.

Edit – Click the Edit link to change the name, address, and monitoring interval for this device.

Device Alerts – Click this link to view and edit the Health Check and Power Sense alerts and alert actions for this device. Alerts on sensor readings such as temperature and humidity are set in the Sensor Alerts section described later in this document.

Delete – Click the delete link to delete the device from your account along with all associated temperature history. **Please note this is not reversible! Once you delete a device, the data is gone forever.**

Device List Sensors

			Cu	urrent Conditions	Device List	My Ac	count	-	_	_		
	Status	Device #		Name		Monitoring	Interval	Last Activity				
ĺ	Alarm!	11444000080	793070751	Wine Fridge (802.11)		15 Minutes		3/24/2010 12:44:38 Pf	/ View	<u>Edit</u>	Device Alerts	Delete
	Alarm!	89012607600	005669220	lake powell water temp	o right now	15 Minutes		5/12/2010 1:36:10 PM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
	Alarm!	89012607600	005671280	89012607600005671280	l.	15 Minutes		9/22/2010 10:09:09 Al	M View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
	Status	Port #	Sensor N	ame	Last Readin	g	Last Activ	rity				
	Normal	1.0	New sen	sor on port #1	65.1 °F/61	.00%	9/22/2010	10:09:09 AM 2	Edit	Sensor	Alerts E	elete
	Normal	2.0	New sen	sor on port #2	64.7 °F/0.0	00%	9/22/2010	10:09:09 AM	Edit	Sensor	Alerts [)elete
	Alarm!	89012607600	005750060	Old 124C		240 Minute	s	4/10/2010 5:08:11 AM	View	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
	Normal	89012607600	005712780	Server Room		15 Minutes		11/3/2009 11:47:25 Pt	/ <u>View</u>	Edit	Device Alerts	Delete
	Normal	11555000003	402786501	usb 40 test		5 Minutes		9/14/2010 12:27:05 Pt	/ <u>View</u>	<u>Edit</u>	Device Alerts	Delete
				8	2009 Temper	ature@lert (All Rights	Reserved				

1) Cellular Edition model TM-CELL300 allows more than one sensor to be monitored. Preceding each device row is a > character. Clicking on this character expands the list of all sensor readings for that device. Links at the bottom of this expanded table allow you to page through the readings.

2) Each sensor has several actions associated with it:

Edit – Click the Edit link to change the sensor name.

Sensor Alerts – Click this link to view and edit the alerts and alert actions for this temperature and/or humidity sensor.

Delete – Click the delete link to delete the sensor from your account along with all associated temperature history. Please note this is not reversible! Once you delete a device, the data is gone forever.

However, if you delete a sensor, the TM-CELL300 will automatically re-create it on the next sensor reading. This is useful if you are switching sensor types in either jack 1 or jack 2.

Device Details & Settings

From the device list, clicking view next to any device brings up the following screen that displays the current settings and sensors attached to a single Temperature@lert Cellular Edition:

MPERATUR	E@LERT								
	Current	Conditions	Device List	My Account		_		_	
vice Information (Ed	D 1								
	-							1	
eviceID			8901260	7600005671280					
lame			8901260	17600005671280					
Ionitoring Interval			15 Minu	utes					
hysical Address			(Geocod	ded as: ,)					
ublic URL			disablec	3					
vice Alerts (<u>Edit</u>) (ad	roll down for sensor ale	irts)							
Alert Status	Alert Type	Ale	rt Name	Threshold Value	Las	t Alarm		l.	
Normal	Missed Report	hc		> 8 intervals					
Alarm!	Power Monitor	po	wer Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1 port :	^{5/2010} 10:16:50) PM		
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 (() port #1	200 po	wer Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1 port :	# 1) PM		
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 () 1 port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 1 06:17 PM	80	Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1 port :	# 1) PM	Į	
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1* on Port #1 ((port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0	80 70 60 50 40	Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1	# 1) PM	Į	
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1 * on Port #1 (port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 jing Date 5	80 70 60 50 40 30 20	Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1	# 1			
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1 * on Port #1 () port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 ing Date 5 -09-22 09:54 AM	80 - 70 - 50 - 40 - 30 - 20 - 20 - 0 -	Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1 port :	# 1) PM	1	
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1 * on Port #1 (() port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 	80 70 60 50 50 20 10 0 9 ϕ_{2}	Nev Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1 port :	# 1	рм 	1	
Alarm!	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 (1 port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:39 AM	80 70 60 50 50 20 10 0 70 60 50 50 50 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 70 70 60 50 70 70 60 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	Nev	AC Power Loss	9/1	# 1	91222010 9:54:50		
Alarm! Alarm! Alarm! Alarm! Alarm! Alarm: Al	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 (2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:39 AM -09-22 09:39 AM	80 70 60 50 40 30 20 10 70 60 50 50 40 40 90 70 60 50 50 40 40 90 70 60 50 50 50 50 40 40 90 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 70 60 70 60 70 60 70 70 60 70 70 60 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	9/2 1/20 70 2:53:28 Ph	AC Power Loss	port :	\$1222010	9/22/2010 9:52/2010 9:54:09 AM		
Alarm! usor: 'New sensor o ensor: Status 4 persor: New sensor o ort #: 1 ast Report: 65.1 "F at ast Alarm: 2010-09-1 ext communication initutes ast Reading Reading 5.1 "F 2010 5.1 "F 2011 5.1 "F 2012 5.1 "F 2016 5.1 "F 2016 5.1 "F 2016 5.1 "F 2017	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 (1 port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:39 AM -09-22 09:24 AM -09-22 09:54 AM	po 3 80 70 60 50 40 30 20 10 92 120 10 92 120 10 10 22 10 10 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	9/21/2010 2:33:28 PM	AC Power Loss	9/11 port :	\$1 \$2222070 \$2222070 \$2070 \$44	9/222010 9-522010 9-52-60 AM		
Alarm! stor: 'New sensor o ensor: Status 4) ensor: New sensor o ort #: 1 ast Report: 651 "F at ast Alarm: 2010-09-1 text communication initutes ast Reading Reading 5.1 "F 2010 5.1 "F 2011 5.1 "F 2012 5.1 "F 2016 5.1 "F 2017 5.1 "F 2016 7.4"F 2017 0.00 % 2016	Power Monitor n port #1* on Port #1 (1 port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 109-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:24 AM -08-27 12:25 PM	80 70 60 50 40 30 70 20 70 20 70 20 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	Nev 2.51/2010 2011/11/2010	AC Power Loss	9/11 port :	# 1	91222010 91222010 91322010 91322010		
Alarm! stor: 'New sensor or ensor: Status 4) ensor: Status 4) ensor: New sensor or ort #: 1 4 ast Report: 65.1 "F at ast Alarm: 2010-09-1 1 text Reading Reading St. "F 2010 5.1 "F 2010 6.1 "F 2010 6.2 "F 2010 6.3 "F 2010 6.4 "F 2010 6.7 "F 2010	Power Monitor n port #1* on Port #1 (1 1 port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 206:17 PM expected in 0 109-22 09:54 AM 1-09-22 09:59 AM -09-22 09:29 AM -09-22 09:29 AM -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:54 AM -08-27 12:25 PM -08-27 12:25 PM	80 70 60 50 40 30 20 20 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	Nev 2:51:2070 2:51:2070 70 111 12	AC Power Loss	9/11	# 1	91222070 91222070 9131409 AM		
Alarm! usor: 'New sensor or ensor Status 4) ensor: Status 4) ast Report: 65.1 "F at ast Reading Rear Reading st. "F 2010 5.1 "F 5.1 "F 2010 5.1 "F 5.1 "F 2010 5.1 "F 5.1 "F 2010 6.5 1 "F 5.1 "F 2010 6.0 1,4 "F 1.00 % 2010 2010	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 () n port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 ing Date 5 -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 09:39 AM -09-22 09:54 AM -09-22 12:55 PM -09-27 12:15 PM	80 - 70 60 - 70 60 - 70 60 - 70 70	Nev 2:53:2070 70 1M 1Y	AC Power Loss	9/1 port :	# 1	9:222010 9:32:2010 9:34:00 AM		
Alarm! stor: 'New sensor or ensor: Status 4) ensor: New sensor or ensor: New sensor or ast Report: 65.1 °F at sast Alarm: 2010-09-1 instes sast Reading Reading Reading S1 °F 2010 5.1 °F 2010 5.1 °F 2010 5.1 °F 2010 5.1 °F 2010 6.1 °F 2010 6.1 °F 2010 6.1 °F 2010 1.0 % 2010 1.00 % 2010 1.00 % 2010 1.00 % 2010 1.00 % 2010	Power Monitor n port #1 * on Port #1 (1 port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 7 06:17 PM expected in 0 -09-22 09:54 AM 1-09-22 09:59 AM -08-27 12:25 PM -08-27 12:	80 70 60 50 50 20 10 70 22, 20 10 70 22, 20 10 0 70 20 10 0 70 20 10 0 70 50 50 50 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 50 70 60 50 70 60 50 70 60 50 70 60 50 70 60 50 70 70 60 50 70 70 60 70 70 60 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	Nes 9/21/2010 2:51:20 PM 70 1M 1Y	AC Power Loss	port :	\$12010 10:16:50 # 1	" 9-22-20-70 2:5:2-20-70 3:5:-08-4.14		
Alarm! stor: 'New sensor o ensor: Status 4) ensor: Status 4) ensor: New sensor o o ensor: Alarm: 2010-09-1 r sat Reading Reading Sat Reading Reading Sat Reading Reading Sat FF 2010 S1 *F 2010 S0 % 2010 L00 % 2010 Doort Loo 2010 nsor Alerts (Edit) 3	Power Monitor n port #1' on Port #1 () n port #1 2010-09-22 09:54 AM 706:17 PM expected in 0 109-22 09:54 AM 109-22 09:54 AM 109-22 09:39 AM 109-22 09:39 AM 109-22 09:39 AM 109-22 09:39 AM 109-22 09:54 AM 109-20 09:54 AM 109-20 09:54 AM 109-20 09:54 AM 1	80 70 60 50 40 30 20 20 70 70 20 70 20 70 70 20 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70	Nev 9/2 1/20 70 2-53:20 PM 50 1M 1Y 6	AC Power Loss	9/11 port =	4 1	9:22-20:0 9:22-20:0 9:34:20 AM	1	

1) The device information table displays the device ID number, the device name, the sensor monitoring/logging interval, the physical address, and the public URL. More details about these settings can be found on the Device Edit page. Click on the edit link next to Device Information to enter edit these items.

2) The device alerts table displays the alerts set at the device level. There are two types of device alerts currently available: Health Check and Power Sense. Health Check allows you to receive alerts if the device stops reporting. The benefit to you is that you'll always know if your device is functioning or not. Power Sense allows you to receive alerts if the device loses AC power or if the battery level drops too low. Click on the edit link next to Device Alerts to edit these items. *Sensor alerts such as temperature and humidity are NOT set here. They are set in each sensor's "Sensor Alert" table below.*

3) *For each jack a sensor is connected to* your Temperature@lert Cellular Edition, the system will display an information table, graph, last readings, and sensor alerts. If you are using more than one jack on your unit, you can scroll down to see the additional sensors. Click on the edit link to edit the sensor name.

4) The sensor status table displays the sensor name, the port/jack on the unit it is connected to, the last time a reading was received, the last time an alarm was triggered, and when the next reading is expected.

5) The last reading table displays the last few readings and time received from the sensor.

6) You can change the time frame of the graph by clicking on one of the chart zoom links at the bottom. 1D will show you the last 24 hours. 7D will show you the last week. 1M will show you the last month. And 1Y will show you the last year (1Y can take several minutes to load).

7) To export temperature readings to MS Excel or MS Word, click the export log link.

8) The Sensor Alerts table displays the current sensor alerts for this sensor. There are 6 columns displayed: Alert Status - This will be green and state "normal" if the sensor readings are currently within your acceptable limits. This will turn red and state "alert" if the last reading is out of your acceptable range.

Sensor Name - The name of the sensor this alert applies to.

Alert Type - Indicates if this alert is for temperature or humidity or another sensor type.

Alert Name - A name that you assign the alert when you set it up.

Threshold Value - The condition on which to trigger an alert.

Last Alarm - The date and time the last time this alert was tripped.

Device Edit

-> C A ht	tps://www.myalertlist.com/Dev	viceDetailsEdit.a	spx?d=89012607600005671280		\$
EMPERATU	RE@LERT			Logged in as: harry	Logout Help
	Current Conditions	Device List	My Account		-
Device Information	(View)				
Name	89012607600005671280]			
Monitoring Interval	15 Minutes 💌				
Physical Address		(Geocoded as: ,)			
Enable Public URL	Disabled 👻				
	Save Changes				
		© 2009 Temperatu	re@left All Rights Reserved		

1) To exit from edit mode without saving your changes, click the View link.

2) The device ID cannot be changed. Change the name of the device to something meaningful such as "Main Refrigerator".

The monitoring interval you choose selects how often the device reports the temperature. Smaller monitoring intervals are available with different monitoring plans. If there is an interval you wish to select that is disabled, please see the My Account section regarding a device's monitoring plan upgrades.

Enter the physical address where this unit is located. It will automatically be converted into latitude and longitude coordinates by the system in order to display the device on the map on the Current Conditions page. This field can be left blank.

When the public URL setting is enabled, the system provides you with a website address that can be used to see the device's current conditions *without logging in.* This URL is useful if you need to provide temperature readings to other users or customers without enabling them to make changes to the device or your account. The public URL setting is per device and not per account.

The public URL also contains a link to download the current conditions in an XML feed. This feed can then be integrated into other applications.

Device Alerts

Device alerts provide you with notifications of events that effect the entire unit such as whether the unit has lost AC power, has a low battery or has stopped reporting in altogether.

		Current C	onditions	Device List	My Account				
-	for Device '89012	607600005671280' (#89012	26076000056	71280) (<u>View</u>)	Threshold Value	l ast Alarm			
i	Normal	Missed Report	hc	Theme .	> 8 intervals		3	Edit	Delete
	Action Type		Address			Send on Clear?			
	Email		you@yo	urdomain.com		True			
	Alarm!	Power Monitor	powe	r	AC Power Loss	9/16/2010 10:16:50 PM		Edit	Delete
	nsor alerts, select th	e sensor from the <u>Device I</u>	6 List or view a	all alerts for this dev € 2009 Temperat	ice <u>here</u> . ure@ient) All Rights Re	eserved			

- 1) Click the View link to exit this screen without making any changes.
- 2) The alert table shows you the conditions under which an alert will be triggered. Alert status indicates whether or not the alert is current tripped. The alert name is the friendly name you assign to this alert to identify it. The alert type indicates whether this is temperature, humidity, power or other type of alert. The threshold value indicates what triggers the alert. Finally, last alarm indicates the last time this alert was triggered.
- Use the edit and delete links to alter or remove the various device alerts.
- If Send on Clear is True, you will be alerted when your temperature or humidity has returned to normal levels. You can edit this setting in via the Edit link.
- 5) Click Add New Alert to add a new alert and threshold value.
- 6) This brings you back to the Device List (see page 16)

Adding/Editing Device Alerts & Actions

In all the second provides a local of			
liertiist.com/DeviceAlertEd	lit.aspx?t=2483		\$
RT		Logged in as: harry Logo	ut Help
Current Conditions Device L	List My Account		_
1280'			
ıc	1		
Only send one alert 👻			
C Power Lost C Power Lost Ow Battery Warning			
/ou@yourdomain.com	Send on clear also	dele	te
	Send on clear also	dele	te
		Cancel	Save
	RT urrent Conditions Device 280' c Inly send one alert • Power Lost • C Power Lost • C Power Lost • c C Power Lost • c C Power Lost • c Device	xrent Conditions Device List My Account 280° c inly send one alert ▼ Power Lost v Battery Warning ou@yourdomain.com	Logged in as: harry Logg urrent Conditions Device List My Account 280° c c inly send one alert • Power Lost • C Power Lost • C Power Lost • Send on clear also deler Send on clear also deler C Cancel

- 1) The device name is displayed at the top of the page.
- 2) The alert section describes this alert.

The alert frequency determines how often you will receive alerts until the device returns to normal. If there is an Alert Frequency that you wish to select is not available, you will need to upgrade the monitoring plan for this device in the My Account section.

Only send one alert – Selecting this option notifies you only on the first reading that the device is behaving abnormally.

Once every N intervals – Selecting this option notifies you only once every N intervals that the device takes a reading. The interval time is either 15 minutes or 60 minutes, depending on what service plan you have.

3) The Condition option specifies the condition you'd like to trigger an alert.

Missed Report (Health Check) – Selecting this option notifies you when your device's signal was not received (due to poor signal reception, or some other malfunction). You can choose the number of intervals between alerts.

Power Monitor (Power Sense) – Selecting this option notifies you of abnormal power conditions for your device. You can choose to be alerted when the device experiences either "Low Battery" or "Loss of Power".

- 4) Next, you need to specify what actions are to be taken when the alert condition occurs.
- 5) First, click Add Action and then choose whether you want an email, text message or telephone call.
 - In the next box enter the email address, text message telephone number or phone call number where you want the alert to be delivered.
 - Check the send on clear also box if you would like to be notified via the same method when the temperature comes back into acceptable range.
 - You can always click the delete link to remove an action.
- 6) When you are finished adding actions, be sure to click the save button. Or click the cancel button to discard any changes you have made.

Sensor Edit

Temperature@lert Devic ×	(†				
← → C 🔒 https://www.	myalertlist.com/Sense	orEdit.aspx?s=536	5		公 3
TEMPERATURE@	LERT			Logged in as: harry	Logout Help
	Current Conditions	Device List	My Account		
Port#1 Name New sensor on port#1 Save Changes					

The Sensor Edit page simply allows you to associate a name to your sensor. Change the name of the Sensor to something meaningful such as "Main Refrigerator – Upper Shelf"

Sensor Alerts

	.ps://www.myalertlist.com/De	viceAlertList.as	px?m=e&d=8901.	26076000056712808	&s=536		2
	DECOLEDT				Logger	l in as: harry	Logout
IFENALU	NE@LENI						
	Current Conditions	Device List	My Account				
for Device '8901	2607600005671280' (#8901260760000)	5671280) - Sensor 'I	New sensor on port#	1' on port #1 (<u>View</u>)			
Alert Status	Sensor Name	Alert Type	Alert Name	Threshold Value	Last Alarm	0	
Normal	New sensor on port #1	Temperature	Too Hot	> 90 °F		Edit	Delete
Action Type	Address			Send	l on Clear?		
Email	you@your	domain.com		True			
4							
dd New Alert							

- 1) Click the View link to exit this screen without making any changes.
- 2) The alert table shows you the conditions under which an alert will be triggered. Alert status indicates whether or not the alert is current tripped. The alert name is the friendly name you assign to this alert to identify it. The alert type indicates whether this is temperature, humidity, power or other type of alert. The threshold value indicates what triggers the alert. Finally, last alarm indicates the last time this alert was triggered.
- 3) Use the edit and delete links to alter or remove the various temperature or humidity thresholds.
- 4) Click Add New Alert to add a new alert and threshold value.

Adding/Editing Sensor Alerts & Actions

- C m nttps://www	w.myalertlist.com/Devi	ceAlertEdit.as	px?t=-1&d=89012607600005671280&s	=536		23
MPERATURE@	PLERT			Logged in as: harry	Logout	Help
	Current Conditions	Device List	My Account			
ert for: evice '8901260760000 ensor 'New sensor of Alert	05671280' 1 n port #1' on port #1	0				
Name: Alert Frequency:	Only send one alert	•				
Condition						
Temperature	▼ above	¥	۴F			
Actions						
Email	•		Send on clear also		delete	
Email Phone						
+ SMS						

- 1) The device and sensor names are displayed at the top of the page.
- 2) The alert section describes this alert.
 - The alert name box allows you to name this alert. Choose something meaningful such as "Main Refrigerator Too Hot"
 - The alert frequency determines how often you will receive alerts until the device returns to normal. If there is an Alert Frequency that you wish to select is not available, you will need to upgrade the monitoring plan for this device in the My Account section.

Only send one alert – Selecting this option notifies you only on the first reading that the device is behaving abnormally.

Once every N intervals – Selecting this option notifies you only once every N intervals that the device takes a reading. The interval time is either 15 minutes or 60 minutes, depending on what service plan you have.

- The Condition option specifies the condition you'd like to trigger an alert. You can specify either Temperature or Humidity, and the threshold.
- 4) Next, you need to specify what actions are to be taken when the alert condition occurs.

First, click Add Action and then choose whether you want an email, text message or telephone call.

- In the next box enter the email address, text message telephone number or phone call number where you want the alert to be delivered.
- Check the send on clear also box if you would like to be notified via the same method when the temperature comes back into acceptable range.
- You can always click the delete link to remove an action.
- 5) When you are finished adding actions, be sure to click the save button. Or click the cancel button to discard any changes you have made.

Exporting Data

To export the temperature history for a device in your account, view a device from your device list and click on "Export Log".

Temperature@lert Export ×						
← → C 🎒 https://www.my.	alertlist.com/Export	.aspx?s=556				2
TEMPERATURE@LE	RT	J.s.			Logged in as: harry	Logout Help
	Current Conditions	Device List	My Account	-		_
Export 1 Device: 89012607600005671280 - New s	ensor on porv Start Date	8	End Date:	3 Format: MS Word	•	
Download Data						
	¢	≥2009 Temperati	ure@lert All Rights F	leserved		

1) Confirm the device you'd like to export data from in the drop down list.

2) Enter the start and end dates (click on the calendar link to pick a date rather than typing it in). Date ranges are limited to a three month moving window.You can select dates as far back in time as the limit associated with your device's monitoring plan.

3) Choose your output format (current MS Word or MS Excel)

4) Click Download Data and you will be prompted to save or open the resulting file.

My Account

The My Account section allows you to control your account preferences.

	//www.myalertlist.com/MyA	.ccount.aspx			\$
MPERATURE					
	@LERT			Logged in as: harry	Logout Help
	Current Conditions	Device List	My Account		
references					
1 Time Zone ((GMT-05:00) Eastern Time	(US & Canada	a) 🔽		
Measurement Units F	ahrenheit]			
	Save Preferences]			
nange Your Email Addr	ess ou@yourdomain.com	1			
	Update My Email Address]			
hange Your Password					
New Password		1			
Re-enter Password]			
	Update My Password]	100		
change your the moni	toring plan for any device or canc	el your service, p	lease <u>contact us</u> .		

Setting Your Time Zone and Units Preferences

1) Set your time zone by selecting it from the list and clicking Save Preferences.

To display your temperature readings and alerts in Fahrenheit or Celsius, select either Fahrenheit or Celsius from the list and click Save Preferences.

This preference encompasses all of the devices associated with your account. If you require some devices in Fahrenheit and some in Celsius, please contact support so we may setup a second login for you.

Changing Your Email Address and Password

2) To change your email address associated with your account, enter it here and click Update My Email Address. This address is used for administrative

communication (such as billing, password help, and other account communications). It is not used for any alerts.

3) To change your password, enter your old password. Then, enter your new password twice and click "Update My Password".

Upgrading Your Account

To upgrade the monitoring plan for any of your devices, please contact support.

Cancelling Your Account

To cancel plan for any of your devices, please contact support.

Obtaining Service and Support

We've worked very hard to ensure that the Temperature@lert Cellular Edition monitoring solution is simple and easy to use. Of course, we do realize that questions and other issues can pop up at any time. So, we'd love to hear from you.

If you require assistance at any time, please visit <u>http://www.temperaturealert.com/</u> and click on the Help/Support tab.

As long as you have an active monitoring plan, technical support and free software upgrades are available to you.

